

Friends of the Loveland Public Library Foundation By-Laws

Article I – Name

Section 1. The name of this organization shall be The Friends of the Loveland Public Library Foundation, Inc. here-in-after known as "The Friends."

Article II – Purpose

Section 1. The purpose of this organization shall be:

- 1. To encourage understanding and appreciation of the work and the role of the Loveland Public Library in the community;
- 2. To encourage literacy in the community;
- 3. To attract bequests and gifts of books, manuscripts, money, materials, or equipment, which are beyond the resources of the Library, and to develop a program of planned giving to the Library;
- 4. To serve as a medium through which citizens of the community may become acquainted with each other, and share their enthusiasm for books and other library materials;
- 5. To encourage volunteer support for the Library's purposes and activities;
- 6. To support the freedom to read as expressed in the Bill of Rights of the American Library Association;
- 7. To facilitate technological changes in the Library's dissemination of information:
- 8. To facilitate the education of the public regarding local culture, history, environment, and lifestyle;
- 9. To support appreciation for and development of the Library staff.

Section 2. Mission Statement: To support and advocate for the Loveland Public Library and its mission "to inform, enrich and inspire a strong, engaged community". The Friends generate current and long-term funding through volunteer involvement.

Article III – Membership

Section 1. Membership shall be open to all individuals, businesses, and organizations that support these purposes.

Section 2. Each member shall be entitled to one vote.

Section 3. Annual dues and categories of membership shall be determined by the Board of Directors.

Article IV – Meetings

Section 1. There shall be an Annual Meeting of the membership for the election of the Board of Directors and the transaction of other business, including annual reports by the Board of Directors and committee chairpersons. It shall be at a time and place and in a form to be determined by the Board of Directors, including the possible use of electronic voting.

Section 2. Special meetings of the membership may be called by the officers of the Board or by written request of 10% of the members, upon 10 days' notice. These meetings may be conducted electronically.

Section 3. All meetings of The Friends Board of Directors are open to all members for information and discussion, although only Board Members may vote.

Section 4. For voting purposes, a quorum is defined as more than 50% of the Board of Directors.

Section 5. Action Without a Meeting / Electronic Voting

A vote by email generated by the president is permitted as needed. Any action required or permitted by law to be taken at a board of directors' meeting may be taken without a meeting, subject to the following restrictions:

- a. Notice must be transmitted in writing to each member of the board;
- b. The number of votes required to take action must equal or exceed the quorum requirements defined in Section 4;
- c. If the president receives a written demand by a director that such action not be taken without a meeting, the board must hold a meeting to vote on the action.

Article V - Board of Directors

Section 1. The Board of Directors shall manage the affairs of The Friends between Annual Meetings and shall direct disbursement of funds. It may fill by appointment any vacancies, whether temporary or long term, occurring in any office or position on the Board of Directors. Such appointments may continue as needed until the next annual meeting. Any member of the Board of Directors may also be removed from his/her position, for cause, by a 2/3 vote of the remaining members of the Board of Directors.

Section 2. The Board of Directors shall consist of the following: four officers (President, Vice-President, Secretary, Treasurer); and no less than three nor more than seven Members at Large. The Board of Directors may create other officer position as deemed necessary.

Section 3. The officers of the organization shall be elected by the Board of Directors at the first board meeting following the annual meeting. The expectation is that officers shall serve a minimum of two years.

Section 4. Board members shall be nominated by a Nominating Committee preceding the Annual Meeting. Such nominations shall be presented to the membership prior to the Annual Meeting, and nominees shall be elected by a majority of the members present at the Annual Meeting.

Section 5. If elected, Board members shall serve for three year terms, and may be re-elected. The Board membership shall be grouped into staggered terms so that one third of the Board membership is elected each year.

Section 6. Each Board member shall be expected to take an active role in the work of the Foundation. Board members attendance is required at all Board meetings. Three absences without cause will result in termination of Board membership. Time and frequency of the Board meetings shall be determined annually.

Article VI – Duties of Officers

Section 1. The President shall preside at all meetings, appoint all committees, and carry out any other duties connected with the office.

Section 2. The Vice-President, or an appointee of the President, shall assist the President and, in case of the absence of the President, shall perform the duties of the President.

Section 3. The Secretary shall record the attendance at all meetings, record the minutes of all proceedings of all meetings, and shall be responsible for preservation of all corporate records, excluding financial records.

Section 4. The Treasurer shall be the custodian of the Foundation's funds, and administer all funds as directed by the Board of Directors. The Treasurer shall keep all financial records, shall make regular written reports to the Board of Directors, and submit an Annual Report to the membership at the Annual Meeting. The Treasurer shall prepare and submit any reports required by law.

Article VII – Committees

Section 1. There shall be at least two standing committees who will report regularly to the President:

- 1. The Finance Committee shall consist of the Treasurer (chair), President, one Board Member at Large, and additional members as deemed necessary by the Treasurer. The Finance Committee shall be responsible for developing and reviewing fiscal procedures of The Friends and the annual budget with input from staff and other Board members. Regular reports shall be submitted to the Board showing actual and accrued income and expenditures. The Finance Committee provides oversight and implementation of the Investment Policy.
- 2. The Membership/Volunteer Committee shall consist of the Membership Coordinator, the Volunteer Coordinator, the Database Administrator, and other members of the Friends as needed. The committee shall be responsible for maintaining the membership database, creating reports as requested, communicating with current and potential members relating to membership issues, and recruiting, recording, and recognizing volunteers.

Section 2. Other committees shall be created as needed. Members and chairs of the committees will be appointed by the President, with the approval of the Board of Directors. The duties and tenure of the additional committees shall depend on their purpose.

Section 3. Committee reports shall be presented to the membership at the Annual Meeting as needed.

Article VIII – Amendments to the Bylaws

Section 1. These bylaws may be amended at any membership meeting of The Friends by a two-thirds vote of the members present, providing that notice of such proposed amendments shall have been sent to all members at least 10 days before said meeting.

Article IX – Parliamentary Procedure

Section 1. Roberts' Rules of Order Revised, when not in conflict with these bylaws, shall guide the proceedings of The Friends.

Article X – Dissolution

Section 1. In the event of the dissolution of The Friends, the Board of Directors will be responsible for paying all outstanding bills and distributing any remaining assets to the Loveland Public Library.

Originally adopted January 12, 2003. Amended January 13, 2004; January 13, 2005; January 22, 2007; January 25, 2010; January 23, 2012; January 18, 2019; January 17, 2020; January 22, 2021.